Belmont High School Circa 1898

“The love of what is good and beautiful and true is a more sure safeguard against vice

 than a knowledge of what is evil, be it ever so scientific.”

George P. Armstrong, Superintendent of Schools, 1897


The structure we now call the Town Hall Annex was originally built in 1898 to house the town’s growing high school population.  The high school was located in a small wooden building on School Street, above what is now the Underwood Playground, but by 1896 had become so crowded that some students were required to sit behind the master’s desk, and two classes were sometimes carried on simultaneously in the same room.  School officials also complained of poor lighting and a complete lack of laboratory space.


The new high school on Moore Street, declared the School Committee, would be “an ornament to the town” and help make the town’s educational system “the peer of that of other progressive communities around us.”  The structure contained six classrooms, two recitation rooms, laboratories, a gymnasium, and an assembly hall, in addition to office space for teachers and the superintendent.


This grand physical expansion of the high school paralleled a similar expansion in the curriculum.  Under the direction of a newly hired Superintendent of Schools, students were for the first time given the chance to choose elective courses in addition to their required class work.  Less time was spent on Latin and Greek and more on English literature and the sciences.  Laboratory space allowed the students to carry on “individual investigation according to scientific methods” instead of merely memorizing terminology.  Everyone was required to take choral music, in the hope that they would be able to “sing a piece of music at sight,” just as they would “read a book from the library.”


With the construction of a gymnasium, physical education, which the superintendent felt was essential in an increasingly urban environment, could be offered for the first time.  “When we have met nature’s requirements, in regard of physical well being,” he wrote, we can expect “more rapid development of mental power.”


Two years later, the physical education teacher proudly announced that she had measured increased lung capacity in every pupil.  A student exhibition given in 1899 demonstrated “free exercises, club swinging, dumb-bell, ring and wand drills, and a game of basket ball.”  The high school girls’ and boys’ basketball teams were first formed in this building that same year.


The schools’ first libraries and lunch programs also date to this time.  


Perhaps as a result of these improvements, enrollment at the high school jumped to 84 students, with one of every three grammar school students continuing into secondary school.  At least two hours of homework a night were required.  Those who stayed long enough to graduate from Belmont High generally went on to higher education.  Each year, some attended Harvard, Radcliffe, or MIT. 


Most students walked to school, which began at 8 a.m. with opening exercises and singing in the assembly hall.  Those arriving with wet feet could dry out next to large radiators in the hallways.  Snow days were announced by a series of bells rung at the Unitarian church.


Despite what seem like quaint customs to us today, portions of the superintendent’s reports sound remarkably familiar.  He lauds Belmont parents for their “kindly interest and hearty cooperation” in their children’s education, thanks the community for its support of the schools, and bemoans the expense of complying with state regulations.  The school budget for 1899 was $19,000. 


The high school remained on Moore Street until 1915, when increasing enrollment forced the town to build an even larger school on Orchard Street.  The Annex building, renamed the Homer School, was then used by elementary students until 1935, when these children were moved to the brand-new Winn Brook School.  The interior of the building was subsequently renovated to house town offices, although the original high school stage on the third floor remains as it was over a hundred years ago.

                                         





—Sharon Vanderslice
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The 1908 Belmont High School baseball team included center fielder, Watson Flett (top row, left), who later became Chairman of the Belmont Board of Selectmen and remained in the position for forty years.

